Town Hall High Street Lewes East Sussex BN7 2QS

a 01273 471469 **Fax:** 01273 480919

info@lewes-tc.gov.uk



MINUTES

of the meeting of the Working Party formed to address traffic-related issues in Lewes held on Friday 20th November 2009, in the Yarrow Room, Town Hall, Lewes at 2:30pm.

PRESENT Cllrs A Barker; M Chartier; A Dean (Mayor); L F Li; M Milner (Chairman); S Murray; R O'Keeffe; J Sinclair;

Attending: S Brigden (Town Clerk); Cllr Matthew Lock (ESCC Lead Member for Transport, Environment and Waste Planning); Roger Williams (ESCC Head of Transport Operations); Cllr Rosalyn St Pierre (ESCC Ringmer & Lewes Bridge Ward).

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Apologies were received and accepted from Cllrs Black and Borowski, both due to continuing ill-health.

TIWP2009/09 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST: There were none

TIWP2009/10 MINUTES: The minutes of the meeting 26th August 2009 were signed as an accurate record.

TIWP2009/11 PUBLIC QUESTIONS: There were none. (No press or public were present.)

TIWP2009/12 BUSINESS OF THE MEETING:

- 1 Cllr Milner welcomed Cllrs Lock and St Pierre, and Mr Williams, and thanked them for attending. He rehearsed the issues of concern discussed by the Town Council in recent years and drew attention to the matter of the ESCC/LTC Parking Board and the apparent refusal of a seat on that forum for the Town Council. This was understood to be now operating as a contract-management body, but the fact that Lewes Chamber of Commerce had originally been offered a seat when LTC had not, and that repeated requests for inclusion had been ignored, was considered discourteous and undemocratic. Cllr Milner also reminded the meeting that he had never received a considered reply from ESCC to his questions following the public opinion survey on the parking regime, conducted jointly by the Town Council; Chamber of Commerce; and Sussex Express in May 2007. It was remarked that the level of response to this survey had been equal in significance to the numbers surveyed by ESCC before the original implementation of the scheme. The overwhelming opinion (79% of residents and 75% of non-residents who responded) was that Lewes had NOT been improved by the scheme. On the particular matter of charging for parking on Bank Holidays, over 90% of all respondents considered that these should be free-of-charge, and LTC fullysupported this view. There were several other legitimate concerns which appeared to have been ignored when reviewing details of the scheme.
- Cllr Lock acknowledged the obvious frustration felt by Town Councillors, and remarked that ESCC had recently published a Charter which might offer some reassurance. He explained that ESCC took a District-wide view of the scheme, and proposed that LTC should join with Seaford and Newhaven Town Councils to identify areas of common concern, although he acknowledged that there were significant differences between those Towns. He further explained that a full review of the Lewes scheme was planned for 2010, and again suggested that he would only be able to respond to common concerns during that process. LTC Members vehemently reiterated that distinct local issues were the crux of their dissatisfaction, and that they considered ESCC should place more value on the views of individual parishes reminding Cllr Lock that these were, like ESCC,

democratically-constituted government bodies; elected to represent their local communities' interests. Cllr Lock stated that, due to staffing limitations, ESCC was unable to routinely attend Parish Council meetings. It was suggested that it was nonetheless appropriate to expect a representative to attend on occasion, when matters of concern were debated, and as a matter of routine LTC could ensure that Cllr Lock was furnished with a personal copy of agendas and minutes of appropriate Working Party or Council meetings, annotated to show where an ESCC response was expected.

- 3 The matter of uninsured losses due to damaged ticket machines was raised, as the sums involved in Lewes had seriously limited anticipated cash surpluses, which should fund transport improvement projects. The ESCC representatives stated that they believed the policy of leaving such "field assets" uninsured was common nationwide. This was disputed, and several contrary examples in the South-East were cited.
- The current "blue-badge" scheme was discussed, and several suggestions arose for improvements to the design of the permit, to facilitate regulation. Mr Williams stated that there was currently a review in progress, initiated by the Department for Transport, and that he would check on the present position regarding consultation responses. LTC Members were keen to ensure that enforcement in this regard was sympathetic, and proposed that minor infringements such as incorrectly-displayed permits were treated on the basis of "presumed innocence". It was suggested that modern management technology should allow identification of a "first offence", and recording of repeated abuses.
- Discussion returned to the issue of "reasonability" of charging for Bankholidays and Cllr Lock stated that he could see logic in an exemption for Market towns, if not for seaside towns. For any review he said he would need to see "more concrete evidence" of damage to business, and promoted his earlier suggestion that town councils should group together to present such cases.
- 6 General discussion followed on various topics, and salient points were:
 - The contract for operation of the scheme runs to 2011.
 - Concerns over the practicality of the resident's permit scheme, with empty bays noticeable during the working day.
 - The "ripple effect" of zoning moving the problem of on-street parking congestion to outer suburban areas.
 - Wardens perceived to patrol in pairs, and the inefficiency this suggested. Mr Williams suggested that this only happened during training, and he was considering the introduction of tabards or similar to identify trainees.
 - A question as to the current financial position, and the benefits accruing from surplus income. Mr Williams commented that the surplus was applied to the ESCC Transport Strategy Budget, publication of which was imminent.
 - A question as to the treatment of small traders such as windowcleaners, and apparent disparity between "traditional" cleaners and those using more technical modified-water systems. It was noted that the Sussex Federation of Small Businesses had raised this point, and also in relation to similarly itinerant traders such as mobile hairdressers. Possible dispensations were being considered.
 - In answer to a question regarding the total parking-space provision, in relation to Lewes' future role within the South Downs National Park, it was noted that whilst LDC might increase off-street provision, ESCC was limited in its ability to designate more on-street

spaces. Cllr Lock pointed-out that Lewes would have been a gateway, even had it not been included within the Park, and that ESCC would respond to emerging trends. Their goal was to reduce vehicle movements across East Sussex anyway.

It was suggested that LTC should prepare a paper giving its views on the scheme and on detail elements within it, and Cllr Lock was asked to give this appropriate consideration during the review. Cllr Lock proposed that a more straightforward approach would be simply to respond to the review consultation comprehensively, and he undertook to attend the Working Party again, in due course, to elaborate on any points arising. This approach was **agreed**, and he went on to suggest that it might be practical for Members to attend County Hall, where relevant maps and other documents would be readily-available, and any ad-hoc issues arising might be addressed immediately.

Cllr Lock and Mr Williams left at this point, and were thanked for their attendance and for their valued contribution to the meeting.

Cllr St Pierre described an initiative she had promoted to have the pedestrian "refuge" on the A26 Malling Hill, Lewes, nearby The Nurseries development, upgraded to a light-controlled crossing. She had obtained over 690 signatures to a petition supporting this, and had ascertained that the cost would be in the region of £50,000. Lewes District Council held funds in the sum of £38,923 which had arisen from the developer contribution "s106 agreement" attached to planning consent for phase one of the scheme at The Nurseries. This money was specifically to assist traffic-related improvements in the vicinity of the development, and LDC officers had indicated that they considered the proposed crossing upgrade to be an acceptable use of that fund. It remained to obtain similar agreement from ESCC Highways officers and then to seek formal appropriation of the fund for that project. When considering financial support for pedestrian-crossings in Lewes, LTC had earlier been advised that this crossing was the highest-ranked within Lewes on the ESCC list of its "top 50" assessed sites, although not (at that time) suitable for LTC support. This situation would change with the current pressures on ESCC's capital expenditure programme, and availability of the s106 fund. LTC had decided to support one of two lower-ranked sites in nearby Church Lane, Malling, with f15,000 identified in the current budget, although no decision as to which site had yet been confirmed and no expenditure yet incurred. It was therefore suggested that this money be applied to "top-up" the s106 fund, should it be released, in order to expedite the improvement proposed by Cllr St Pierre, and LTC members agreed and warmly welcomed this idea.

TIWP2009/13 RECOMMENDATIONS:

It was agreed that Council should be asked to:

- 1 support the proposed "upgrade" of the A26 Malling Hill, Lewes, pedestrian refuge to a light-controlled crossing, and call for the use of "s106" developer contributions in respect of The Nurseries phase1, held on account by Lewes District Council, for this purpose and;
- 3 use the sum (£15,000) allocated in the current year's budget to support the installation of one pedestrian crossing in Lewes, to top-up the developer contributions to the estimated amount (approximately £50,000) required to carryout this improvement.

	1 he meeting tiosea at 4.55 ph	
Signed:	Date:	

The meeting closed at 1.25 tm